



MICROCOPY RESOLUTION TEST CHART NATIONAL BUREAU OF STANDARDS 1963-A

}\_

ARL-AERO-NOTE-413





# DEPARTMENT OF DEFENCE SUPPORT

# DEFENCE SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY ORGANISATION AERONAUTICAL RESEARCH LABORATORIES

MELBOURNE, VICTORIA

**AERODYNAMICS NOTE 413** 

# PROPELLER POWER EFFECTS WITH WING FLAPS DEFLECTED

by

C. A. MARTIN

Approved for Public Release.

(C) COMMONWEALTH OF AUSTRALIA 1982

83 05 16 142

Ε

OCTOBER 1982

ONC FILE COPY

COPY No

THE UNITED STATES NATIONAL TECHNICAL INFORMATION SERVICE IS AUTHORISED TO ' REPRODUCE AND SELL THIS REPORT

1. P. . H.

٠

- HONE

•

.

•

Ħ

.

٠

AR-002-916

DEPARTMENT OF DEFENCE SUPPORT DEFENCE SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY ORGANISATION AERONAUTICAL RESEARCH LABORATORIES

**AERODYNAMICS NOTE 413** 

# PROPELLER POWER EFFECTS WITH WING FLAPS DEFLECTED

by

## C, A. MARTIN

#### SUMM.4RY

In this Note a model of the dynamic motion of a single-engine propeller-driven aircraft has been used to illustrate a longitudinal stability problem caused by the effects of power. In a recent general study on the effects of power the problem was shown to be due to changes in propeller slipstream dynamic head acting on a tailplane carrying a download. The problem is here studied in closer detail using the methods developed in the general study. A notable feature of the destabilising effect is that it increases as c.g. moves forward and so opposes the conventional stabilising effects associated with forward c.g. movement.



POSTAL ADDRESS: Director, Aeronautical Research Laboratories, Box 4331, P.O., Melbourne, Victoria, 3001, Australia

## CONTENTS

	Page No.
1. INTRODUCTION	1
2. LONGITUDINAL STABILITY	1
3. ESTIMATION OF POWER EFFECTS	2
4. EFFECT OF PROPELLER SLIPSTREAM ACTING ON A TAILPLANE CARRYING A DOWNLOAD	2
5. FLIGHT TEST RESULTS	3
6. CONCLUSION	4
REFERENCES	
NOMENCLATURE	
FIGURES	

÷,

DISTRIBUTION

おおまた とう

山北の町町の町の町町町町町

## **DOCUMENT CONTROL DATA**



#### **1. INTRODUCTION**

Because the propeller proved to be a key element in achieving the first power-driven flight in 1903 and is still used as the main method of producing thrust on low-speed aircraft, the effects of propellers on aircraft stability and control have been the topic of much research throughout the history of flight. During the 1930s and 1940s this topic was a major area of research in the national research agencies of Germany, Britain and the USA. With the advent of jet engines and swept-wing aircraft the research emphasis rapidly moved away from propeller-driven aircraft and has only recently been revived with the development of V/STOL aircraft and with developments in numerical analysis.

Throughout this period a large number of propeller-driven aircraft types have been flown and tested, and their power effects have been measured. Nothwithstanding this large amount of research and design experience, accurate theoretical methods for the estimation of propeller power effects do not exist. Furthermore, while the net effects of power are known, little published information exists on the way individual power effects accumulate to alter aircraft flying qualities. The deficiency in reliable design techniques for the estimation of the effects of power, is in fact evidence that the characteristics are very sensitive to small changes in aircraft layout.

A good discussion of the effects of propeller operation and power on Aircraft Flying Qualities was given by Phillips in 1948 (Ref. 1). In Reference 2 a digital computer has been used to calculate the flying quality parameters of a single-engine aircraft to illustrate these effects and to show how they are altered by changes in aircraft layout.

One effect described in Reference 1 and illustrated in Reference 2 results in a marked reduction in longitudinal stability. The effect occurs at low speeds with high power and with flaps deflected. Since this flight condition is frequently associated with poor longitudinal stability it has been studied in closer detail using the methods of Reference 2 and is the subject of the present Note.

## 2. LONGITUDINAL STABILITY

The effect to be illustrated involves aerodynamic coefficients which are functions of both incidence and speed and whose variation is nonlinear. However, the analysis is presented using conventional methods such as "trim curves" and "static stability" theory which can be related to general linear system stability theory. This approach can be justified since it gives a framework for identifying the main elements of the problem and also is still used widely for flight test analysis. The assumptions involved in this approach are outlined below.

The variation of pitching moment with incidence  $C_{m_{\alpha}}$  termed the "pitch stiffness" is extremely important in determining longitudinal stability. When Mach number, aeroelastic and power effects are negligible on an aircraft, the equations describing aircraft motion can be simplified to a linear set such that positive "pitch stiffness" ( $C_{m_{\alpha}}$  negative) becomes a condition for stability. This is the simple theory of "static stability" in which speed dependent terms are zero. In this theory a c.g. position termed the netural point and denoted  $h_n$  is defined such that:

$$C_{\mathrm{m}_{a}} = C_{\mathrm{L}_{a}}(h - h_{\mathrm{n}}) \tag{1}$$

where  $C_{L_{\alpha}}$  is the aircraft lift curve slope, and

h is the longitudinal c.g. position.

For  $h > h_n$ ,  $C_{m_a}$  is positive and the longitudinal motion of the aircraft will be unstable.

When power effects are present, the pitching moment becomes a function of speed as well as incidence. Providing these effects can be represented by linear equations, the condition for longitudinal stability is, as given in Reference 3:

$$(C_{L_{a}} + C_{D_{e}})C_{m_{V}} - C_{m_{a}}(C_{L_{V}} + 2C_{w_{e}}) > 0.$$
<sup>(2)</sup>

As with the simple theory, a c.g. position can be determined which defines a boundary between stable and unstable longitudinal motion. This is termed in Reference 3 the longitudinal "static stability limit",  $h_{\rm s}$ , and is given by:

$$h_{\rm s} = h_{\rm n} + C_{\rm m}/(C_{\rm LV} + 2C_{\rm w_e}).$$
 (3)

In general the effects of power are non-linear but, if the study is confined to small disturbances about an equilibrium condition, then a linear model employing aerodynamic derivatives can be used and the parameters  $h_n$  and  $h_s$  are still applicable. The values of  $h_n$  and  $h_s$  will, however, change with changes in equilibrium condition.

In the flight measurement of longitudinal stability, the use of elevator "trim curves" has traditionally been used as a simple and informative method of analysis. It is shown in Reference 3 that the variation of elevator angle for trim with speed is a true criterion for stability and that the c.g. position for which this variation becomes zero is the "static stability limit"  $h_s$ . It is conventional practice in the analysis of flight measurements to interpret trim and stability changes from plots of elevator angle versus lift coefficient rather than speed, since in the absence of velocity-dependent and non-linear terms the plots against lift coefficient are linear while those against speed are parabolic. When these restricted assumptions do not hold, it is still more convenient to use lift coefficient for the abscissa, since the non-linear effects can be observed as non-linearities in the trim curves, and the curves are still good, if not absolute, indicators of stability.

#### **3. ESTIMATION OF POWER EFFECTS**

The main changes to the longitudinal forces and moments due to applying power on propeller-driven aircraft are listed in Reference 1 as:

- (1) moment of propeller axial force about centre of gravity;
- (2) moment of propeller normal force about centre of gravity;
- (3) increased angle of downwash;
- (4) increased dynamic pressure at the tail;
- (5) changes in pitching moment of wing due to action of slipstream.

In Reference 2 these effects have been calculated using the estimation method of Reference 4 for the single-engine propeller-driven aircraft layout shown in Figure 1. This layout is termed in Reference 2 the "typical aircraft layout" since it possesses features similar to many modern single-engine aircraft, viz. the wing is located below the propeller thrust line and the tailplane above, with the thrust line located along the fuselage horizontal centre-line. The estimation methods are mainly based on techniques developed during the 1940s which combine a relatively elementary theoretical analysis of the important elements of the problem with empirical data obtained from experiment. At the current time numerical solutions for the aerodynamic forces on wings immersed in jets and propeller slipstream are under development. However, these techniques have not reached the level of routine design application and do not cover the full range of effects listed above. Consequently they have not been used in the present analysis.

Flying quality parameters have been determined using numerical solutions of the nonlinear equations of motion for steady level and steady turning flight. Longitudinal derivatives are calculated by local numerical linearisation about the equilibrium conditions and permit the power effects listed above to be considered separately or in any combination.

## 4. EFFECT OF PROPELLER SLIPSTREAM ACTING ON A TAILPLANE CARRYING A DOWNLOAD

In Reference 2 it is shown that the aircraft layout in Figure 1 experiences a large decrease in stability at large lift coefficients when the flaps are deflected. Figure 2 shows the "trim curves" that would result from flight test measurement of this layout for forward c.g., maximum power and with flap angles of zero and 20°. With flaps deflected to 20° increased negative elevator angle is required to trim the increased nose-down pitching moment at the wing and body. This increased pitching moment results from an increase in negative  $C_{m_0}$  when flaps are deflected which is magnified by the presence of the propeller slipstream. However, because wing downwash is increased

with flaps deflected, the increase in elevator angle required for trim is not as large as it would otherwise be. Flight measurement would also show that the tailplane load with zero flap would be negative only at high speeds (low lift coefficient) as shown in Figure 3 while with flaps deflected 20° the tailplane would carry a download at all speeds.

The slope of the trim curves (Fig. 2) reveals a reduction in stability with increasing lift coefficient both with flaps zero and 20°. However, for 20° flap there is a dramatic decrease above  $C_L = 0.94$ ; in fact the aircraft is almost neutrally stable at the forward c.g. This loss in stability is clearly shown in Figure 4 by the reduction in static stability limit  $h_s$  at high lift coefficient.

Normally it would be extremely difficult to infer from the trim curves and plots of  $h_s$  which of the listed power effects were responsible for the loss in stability. However, in the computer model developed in Reference 2 the power effects can be introduced separately or accumulated separately as shown in Figure 5. From this figure it can be seen that the main cause of the instability above  $C_L = 0.94$  is the effect of slipstream at the taliplane.

The plot of  $h_n$  in Figure 6 enables the loss in stability to be identified primarily as an incidence effect rather than a speed effect. Comparison of  $h_n$  with  $h_s$  (Fig. 4) shows that the speed derivatives, which account for the difference between  $h_s$  and  $h_n$ , are stabilising with flaps deflected, but are slightly destabilizing in the zero flap case. The stabilising effect with flaps deflected is caused by the effective increase in negative  $C_{m_0}$  due to increased dynamic pressure ratio at the wing when speed is reduced. This gives a positive  $C_{m_V}$  derivative which as shown in equation (2) is stabilising. This increase is reduced slightly at high  $C_L$  by the effect of the slipstream acting on the tailplane when it carries a download as discussed by Phillips in Reference 1. As speed reduces, the increased dynamic head ratio at the tail increases the tailplane download and so contributes a negative  $C_{m_V}$ .

For the aircraft layout considered, the major destabilising effect occurs as a result of incidence changes and is caused, as shown in Figure 7 by the tailplane entering a region of increasing dynamic pressure as incidence increases. Normally an increase in tailplane incidence produces increased upload but this effect is more than offset by the large increase in dynamic pressure above  $C_L = 0.94$  shown in Figure 8 which produces increased download. Since the tailplane download required for trim is greatest for forward c.g.'s the destabilising effect increases as c.g. moves forward. This effect differs strikingly from the classical result of simple static stability theory, in which "pitch stiffness" and stability increase as c.g. moves forward. The instability demonstrated in the example depends upon the vertical position of the tailplane and on the variation of dynamic head within the slipstream. For this study, the location of the slipstream is calculated according to the methods of Reference 4. The slipstream is assumed to be cylindrical with diameter equal to the propeller diameter as shown in Figure 7, and the dynamic head in the slipstream, which is assumed to be uniform, is estimated from the method of Reference 4. This representation is a significant simplification of the true situation as shown by the dynamic head distribution on Figure 9 taken from Reference 6. As such, it is likely that the power effects illustrated by the computer model exaggerate the loss in stability that would be expected in practice. A comparison of the effective dynamic head ratio for the model and for the distribution of Figure 9 is shown in Figure 10 for the case in which the tailplane is assumed to be entering the slipstream from above. While the increases of effective dynamic head ratio for the two cases shown are very similar it would be incorrect to infer from this one comparison that the estimation method is in general as accurate as indicated.

## 5. FLIGHT TEST RESULTS

The author is aware of two cases of aircraft with longitudinal problems similar to those described in this paper. In the first example reported in Reference 5 the aircraft was found to be unstable during the climb even at forward c.g. Relocation of the tailplane by using tailplane dihedral solved the problem. In the second example the aircraft exhibited longitudinal divergence at low speeds with power-on, flaps-deflected and forward c.g. The divergence did not occur at aft c.g. A complete analysis of these stability problems has not been carried out and would be difficult, because as previously discussed the effects of power are complex and theoretical methods of prediction having the necessary degree of accuracy do not yet exist. However, because of the strong similarity in the above flight conditions with those studied in this paper, it appears likely that the effect of propeller slipstream in combination with a download on the tailplane was a major factor in both cases.

## 6. CONCLUSION

In this Note a mathematical model of the longitudinal characteristics of a single-engine propeller aircraft is used to illustrate a stability problem associated with flight conditions of low speed, high power and flaps-deflected. The problem is caused by changes in propeller slipstream dynamic head acting on a tailplane carrying a download. In the example the tailplane download is needed to trim the wing/body moments due to flap deflection. The increase in dynamic head at the tail is caused firstly by an increase in thrust coefficient as speed reduces and secondly by the tailplane entering the propeller slipstream as incidence increases. In the example considered, the latter effect, which is critically dependent on vertical tail location, is dominant and results in the aircraft becoming almost neutrally stable at forward c.g. The example illustrates the difficulty of analysing power effect stability problems from flight test measurements and demonstrates the need for more accurate theoretical prediction methods.

4

## REFERENCES

- 1. Phillips, W. H. Appreciation and Prediction of Flying Qualities. NACA TN 1670, 1948.
- 2. Martin, C. A. Power Effects on the Longitudinal Characteristics of Single-Engine Propeller-Driven Aircraft. ARL Report No. 157, 1982.
- 3. Etkin, B. E. Dynamics of Atmospheric Flight. John Wiley and Sons Inc., 1972.
- 4. Hoak, D. E. USAF Stability and Control Datcom. Flight Control Division, AFFDL, Wright Patterson AFB, 1977.
- 5. Wimpenny, J. C. "Stability and Control in Aircraft Design." Journal of the Royal Aeronautical Society 58, May 1954.
- 6. Katzoff, S. Longitudinal Stability and Control with Special Reference to Slipstream Effects. NACA Report No. 690, 1940.

## NOMENCLATURE

~

α	Aircraft incidence
c.g.	Centre of gravity
CL	Lift coefficient
Cm	Pitching moment coefficient
$C_{m_0}$	Zero lift pitching moment coefficient
Cw	Weight coefficient
h	Longitudinal c.g. position as fraction of MAC
hn	Neutral point as fraction of MAC
h <sub>s</sub>	Static stability limit as fraction of MAC
MAC	Mean aerodynamic chord
V	Forward speed

Subscripts

.

فيقادهم فالمتعاد بالمتعاقبة والمتعاقب والمتناكر والمستلك والمسترك والمستعلي والمسترك

e Equilibrium value







 $C_{f}/M.A.C. = 0.2$ 

Details of single-slotted Flap

# FIG. 1 AIRCRAFT LAYOUT USED IN THE STUDY

\*



FIG. 2 TRIM CURVES POWER-ON FWD.C.G.

1.2.2.5







FIG. 4 VARIATION OF hs WITH CL POWER-ON



1 Propeller axial force

:

- 2 Plus propeller normal force
- 3 Plus wing-body Cm<sub>o</sub>, effects
- 4 Plus wing-body lift effects
- 5 Plus downwash effects
- 6 Plus tail dynamic head effects

• :

FIG. 5 ACCUMULATION OF POWER EFFECTS FLAPS 20 DEG. FWD. CG.



# FIG. 6 VARIATION OF hn WITH CL POWER-ON



Ł

60 KTS. (C<sub>L</sub> ≈ 1.38)







## FIG. 8 TAILPLANE DYNAMIC PRESSURE RATIO POWER ON



FIG. 9 TOTAL HEAD DISTRIBUTION AT THE TAIL (FROM REF. 6)



FIG. 10 COMPARISON OF EFFECTIVE TAILPLANE DYNAMIC HEAD RATIO

## **DISTRIBUTION**

## **AUSTRALIA**

## DEPARTMENT OF DEFENCE AND DEPARTMENT OF DEFENCE SUPPORT

#### **Central Office**

Chief Defence Scientist Deputy Chief Defence Scientist Superintendent, Science and Technology Programmes Controller, Projects and Analytical Studies Defence Science Representative (UK) Doc. Data sheet only) Counsellor, Defence Science (USA) (Doc. Data sheet only) Defence Central Library Document Exchange Centre, DISB (17 copies) Joint Intelligence Organisation Librarian H Block, Victoria Barracks, Melbourne Director-General—Army Development (NSO) (4 copies) Defence Industry and Material Policy, FAS

## Aeronautical Research Laboratories

Director Library Superintendent-Aerodynamics Divisional File-Aerodynamics Author: C. A. Martin D. A. Secomb R. A. Feik J. S. Drobik B. W. Gunn

## Materials Research Laboratories Director/Library

Defence Research Centre Library

#### Central Studies Establishment Information Centre

## RAN Research Laboratory Library

#### **Navy Office**

Navy Scientific Adviser RAN Aircraft Maintenance and Flight Trials Unit Directorate of Naval Aircraft Engineering Directorate of Naval Aviation Policy

#### **Army Office**

Army Scientific Adviser Engineering Development Establishment, Library Royal Military College Library US Army Research, Development and Standardisation Group

#### **Air Force Office**

Air Force Scientific Adviser Aircraft Research and Development Unit Scientific Flight Group Library Technical Division Library Director-General Aircraft Engineering—Air Force Director-General Operational Requirements—Air Force HQ Operational Command (SESO) HQ Support Command (SENGSO) RAAF Academy, Point Cook

#### **Government Aircraft Factories**

Manager Library Mr. P. Hughes Mr. D. Pilkington

#### **DEPARTMENT OF AVIATION**

Library Flying Operations and Airworthiness Division

## STATUTORY AND STATE AUTHORITIES AND INDUSTRY

Trans-Australia Airlines, Library Qantas Airways Limited SEC of Victoria, Herman Research Laboratory, Library Ansett Airlines of Australia, Library Commonwealth Aircraft Corporation Library Mr. J. Caterson Hawker de Havilland Aust. Pty. Ltd., Bankstown, Library Rolls-Royce of Australia Pty. Ltd., Mr. C. G. A. Bailey

## UNIVERSITIES AND COLLEGES

Adelaide	Barr Smith Library	
	Professor of Mechanical Engineering	
Flinders	Library	
Latrobe	Library	
Melbourne	Engineering Library	
Monash	Hargrave Library	
Newcastle	Library	
Sydney	Engineering Library	
New South Wales	Physical Sciences Library	
	Professor R. A. A. Bryant, Mechanical Engineering	
Queensland	Library	
Tasmania	Engineering Library	
Western Australia	Library	
	Associate Professor J. A. Cole, Mechanical Engineering	
RMIT	Library	
	Mr. E. Stokes, Civil and Aeronautical Engineering	

## CANADA

International Civil Aviation Organization, Library Canadair Limited, Mr. R. E. Ward

#### NRC

Aeronautical and Mechanical Engineering Library Division of Mechanical Engineering, Director

## Universities

Toronto Institute for Aerospace Studies

## FRANCE

**ONERA**, Library

## GERMANY

Fachinformationszentrum: Energie, Physik, Mathematik GmbH D.F.V.L.R. (Braunschweig)

## INDIA

Defence Ministry, Aero Development Establishment, Library Gas Turbine Research Establishment, Director Hindustan Aeronautics Ltd, Library National Aeronautical Laboratory, Information Centre

#### ISRAEL

Technion-Israel Institute of Technology, Professor J. Singer

#### ITALY

Professor Ing. Guiseppe Gabrielli

#### JAPAN

Institute of Space and Astronautical Science, Library

#### **NETHERLANDS**

National Aerospace Laboratory (NLR), Library

#### Universities

Delft University of Library Technology Mr. J. A. Mulder

## NEW ZEALAND

Defence Scientific Establishment, Library Transport Ministry, Airworthiness Branch, Library RNZAF, Vice-Consul (Defence Liaison)

#### Universities

Canterbury

Library Professor D. Stevenson, Mechanical Engineering

#### SWEDEN

Aeronautical Research Institute, Library Swedish National Defense Research Institute (FOA)

#### SWITZERLAND

Armament Technology and Procurement Group F + W (Swiss Federal Aircraft Factory)

## UNITED KINGDOM

CAARC, Secretary (NPL) **Royal Aircraft Establishment** Bedford, Library Commonwealth Air Transport Council Secretariat National Gas Turbine Establishment Director, Pyestock North British Library, Lending Division CAARC Co-ordinator, Structures Aircraft Research Association, Library GEC Gas Turbines Ltd., Managing Director Rolls-Royce Ltd., Aero Division Bristol, Library **British Aerospace** Hatfield—Chester Division, Library Kingston-Brough Division, Library British Hovercraft Corporation Ltd., Library Short Brothers Ltd., Technical Library

#### **Universities and Colleges**

Bristol	Engineering Library	
Cambridge	Library, Engineering Department	
	Whittle Library	
London	Professor G. J. Hancock, Aero Engineering	
Manchester	Professor, Applied Mathematics	
	Professor N. Johannesen, Fluid Mechanics	
Nottingham	Science Library	
Southampton	Library	
Liverpool	Fluid Mechanics Division, Dr. J. C. Gibbings	
Strathclyde	Library	
Cranfield Inst. of	Library	
Technology		
Imperial College	Aeronautics Library	

#### UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

NASA Scientific and Technical Information Facility Applied Mechanics Reviews Lockheed—California Company McDonnell Aircraft Company, Library

## Universities and Colleges

Johns Hopkins	Professor S. Corrsin, Engineering
Princeton	Professor G. L. Mellor, Mechanics
Massachusetts Inst. of Technology	MIT Libraries
George Washington	Joint Institute for Advancement of Flight Sciences,
	Dr. V. Klein

Spares (20 copies)

Total (169 copies)

## Department of Defence Support

## DOCUMENT CONTROL DATA

I, a. AR No. AR-002-916	I. b. Establishment No. ARL-AERO-NOTE-413	2. Document Date October, 1982	3. Task No. DST 82/030
4. Title PROPELLER FLAPS DEFLI	POWER EFFECTS WITH WING ECTED	5. Security a. document Unclassified b, title c. abstract U. U.	6. No. Pages 6 7. No. Refs 6
8. Author(s) C. A. Martin		9. Downgrading Instru	ctions
10. Corporate Auti Aeronautical Re Melbourne, Vic.	nor and Address esearch Laboratories, P.O. Box 4331, 3001.	II. Authority (as appro a. Sponsor b. Security	priate) c. Downgrading <u>d.</u> Approval
12. Secondary Dist Approved for pr Overseas enquirers Branch, Departmen 13. a, This documer No limitations	ribution (of this document) ablic release outside stated limitations should be referred t of Defence, Campbell Park, CANBERRA, A at may be ANNOUNCED in catalogues and an	through ASDIS, Defence CT 2601. wareness services availabl	e Information Services,
		·····	
13. b. Citation for 6 14. Descriptors Propellers Aircraft engines Flight characteri Longitudinal sta	other purposes (i.e. casual announcement) may Aircraft engine power Flying qualities stics bility	be ( <del>select)</del> unrestricted ( 0	( <del>07) as for 13 a</del> . 5. COSATI Group 103
16. Abstract In this Note a model of the dynamic motion of a single-engine propeller-driven aircraft has been used to illustrate a longitudinal stability problem caused by the effects of power. In a recent general study on the effects of power the problem was shown to be due to changes in propeller slipstream dynamic head acting on a tailplane carrying a download. The problem is here studied in closer detail using the methods developed in the general study. A notable feature of the destabilising effect is that it increases as c.g. moves forward and so opposes the conventional stabilising effects associated with forward c.g. movement.			

This page is to be used to record information which is required by the Establishment for its own use but
which will not be added to the DISTIS data base unless specifically requested.

16. Abstract (Contd)

17. Imprint Aeronautical Research Laboratories, Melbourne		
18. Document Series and Number Aerodynamics Note 413	19. Cost Code 52 7730	20. Type of Report and Period Covered
21. Computer Programs Used		
22. Establishment File Ref(s)		